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Battery G, First Artillery Regiment, Fourth Brigade (formerly
Sarsfield Crenadier Guard)
Reference: Ad Jutant General's Files
Location: Sacramento, Sacramento County
Organized July 29, 1870
Reorganized March 19, l€80*
Reconstituted July 1, 1893**

Commanding Officers

%gg% gammiasion
e Ws Sheehan, Captelin Jan, ‘24, 1879 eb. s 1879%%*

_ (Re-elected Fed. 2, 1880)
Fromoted to Colonel
First artillery Regiment, 1881)

John F. Daltom, First Lieut. Feb. 6, 1878 PFeb. 16, 1878%**
tao-elocted Feb. 21 1880)

Fromoted to Ceptain 1881)
John ¥F. Dalton, captain Nove 21, 1881 Dec. &, l88l
Earry w. Ri'.tt, FirSt I_J.'ent. Dece. 19, l8s8l Jan. 4. lasa
Clinton L. White, Captain June 18, 1883 June 22, 1883

Harry W. Rilvelti, First Lieut.
Re-clected 1883)
Term explired Jan. 4, 1884)
Kaurice H. Sheehan, First Lleut. Jan. 14, 1884 TFeb. 1, 1884

Thomas B. Hall, Captaln June 29, 1885 July 30, 1885
Haurice H. Sheehan, First Lieut.
(Re=clected Jan. 25, 1886)
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*Battery G, formerly Sarsfield Grenadler Guard redesignated
Battery G, First airtillery Regiment, Fourth Brigade, March 19,
1880.

Ad Jutant General Report 1E80, Speclal Order No. 19, page 76.

**Battery G redeslignated Company G, Jecoad Infantry Reglment,
Fourth Brigade, July 1, 15693.
Ad Jutant General Report 1693-1894, General Order No. 7, page 97,

**#Captain Sheehan and Lisutenant Dalton retained their former
rank end commission as of January 24, and Februasry 7, 1879,
and Februasry 6, and February 16, 187é, respectively, when they

commended the Sarsfield Crenedier Guard, Fourth Brigade.
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Activities:

Commanding Officers (Continued)
Rank

Commission

(Re-elected July 11, 1887)
Ksurice H. Sheehan, rlrat Lieut.
(Term expired Jan. 16, 1888)
Sdwerd Sheehan, First Lleut. Jen. 16, 1888 TFeb, 3, 1888

. (Resigned June 14, 1889)

Thomas B. Hall, Captein

(Re-elected 3uly 1, 1889) |
‘Meurice H. Sheehan, First Lieut. July -1, 188%¢ July 30, 1889

Thomas B. Hall, Ceptain

P
(Re-elected fuly 1 1891) :
Albert E. Stearnms, First Lieut. June 29, 1891 July 10, 1891

'Y

The companlies of the First Infantry Battalion end Sacramento
Light aArtillery, unattached, were consolidated into a full
Battalion Merch 19, 1880, and each unit classiflied by a letter,
dropping their former proper names. Battery G previously had
been the Sersfleld Qggnadior Cuard of Sacramento, and by the
above order was therealter to be designated Battery G, First
artillery Regiment, Fourth Brigede. The change was in accordance
with the wishes of both commends and was done for a two fold

purpose. First, to increase the spirit of discipline and soldier-

ly bearing the officers and privates, snd secondly, to pro-
duce a greater interest eméng the citizens toward the Natiomal
Guard. The batteries were only nominally artillery being armed
"and drilled as infantry and differing solely in dress. The
difference necessitated a change in the trimmings of the uniforms
from blus to red.* By November of that year the corps was fully
outfitted in full dress and fstigue uniforms of artillery design.
In 18688 at the time the entire National Guard was uniformed
Battery G received their allotment of fifty-seven new uniforms.**
A few days previous to the reorganization Battery G, thenm the
Sarsfield Crenadier Guard, had received a requisition of arms
consisting of one EETIIEE’gun and appendages, three revolvers
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*Sacremento Bee, March 20, 1880, page 3, c¢olumn 2.

**por further detalls regarding the reorganization of the National
Guard, 1880, refer to History of Battery A, First irtillery Regl-

ment, Fourth Brigsde.




Aotivitles: (Continued)

Smith and Wesson caliber 45 for the use of the officers and
ten gun slings. The other arms consisted of:

61 Springfleld rifles

61 bayonets
110 bayonets scabbards and belts

60 cartridge boxes and plates

60 cartridge boxes, belts and plates
110 waist belts ¢ :
110 walst belt plates

50 gun slings

A Speclal Order was issued November 26, 1881, authorizing the
transfer of the Gatling gun In the possession of Battery G to
Battery B, First airtillery Regiment.*

An election had been held the January preceding. the formation
of the Artillery Regiment, end the same officers continued in
command of Battery G up to November 1881, when Captaln T. W.
Sheehan was promoted to the reamnk of Colonel and First Lisutensnt
John F. Dalton, was promoted to the Captainey of the company
vacated by Colonel Sheehan. Brigadier-General Johm ¥, Sheehsan,
received his appointment January 15, 1880, and assumed command
of the Fourth Brigade to which regiment Battery C was attached
four days later, end much credit is due to kim for his un-
tiring efforts ln.increaaing the efficiency of the units under
his command. This was demonstrated in the increased interest
and pride in the reglmentesl organization by the officers and
members of the Fourth Brigade.

MajJor C. H. Fubbard, Inspection officer recommended a large
armory for Battery 6, at the annual inspection and muster of
the unit November 22, 1880. This condition was not corrected,
however, until 1862 when the regimentel armory situated om the
southwest corner of Sixth and I Strest was dedicated. The old
Frenklin School Building had been purchesed and remodelled into
sultable gquarters. Battery G for the same consideration of
money as formerly expended for rent a month shared the new
armory end benefited greatly from the improved accommodations.**

In 1883 the Board of Location and Organization reduced the

allowance of Battery G together with the remsining batteries of
the First artillery Regiment to §100 & month. The regiment had
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*id Jutant General Report 1881-1882, Speecial Order No. 88, page 120.
#%Ad jutent General Report 1881-1882, page 140.
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Activitles: (Continued)

previously been recelving §125 & month and §25.00 extra for
each aaditional gun over one, and the Board bellieved this
was an unjust diserimination in their favor eas egainst the
sgzon% :rt&llery Regiment and other infentry compenies in

t State.

Battery G played an important role in the maintensnce of law
and order during the riot caused by the shooting of a prominent
and highly esteemed citizen, Mr. James Lansing of Sacramento,
April 10, 1682. Raten the assassin had e querrel with a man
named Erieckson the day before, and meeting him in front of
Lansing*s Hotel on the day of the fatal accident, unsuccess-
fully attempted to shoot 1t out with Erieckson. A crowd
- assembled and quickly gave chase, and when Raten ren down the
) alley in the rear of MNr. Lansing‘s Hotel, Nr. Lansing gave
chase and was shot by the infuriated men before he had gone
100 feet. At the time of Mr. Lansing's death the following
day, threats of lynching were heard on every slde and the .
Euniolpal authorities realizing the intensity of public feel-
ing called on the military authorities for assistance. Battery G
together with Battery A was authorized by Speclal Order Ko. 4
April eleventh to assemble in their berrecks ans stand by rea&y
for service when celled. During early evening a crowd was
gathering in the vicinlty of the Jail end an attack was expect-
ed momentarily. Bettery G was ordered to the prison at 9:15
P.M., remaining under arms for sometime while guards were post-
ed to keep the crowd back. The crowd gradually followed Mayor
John D. Brown's advice and went home, altlough to prevent a
reld in the nlght a guard wes meintained. A number of members
= of Battery G were among the number to keep guard at the County
Jall sach night, for the week rollowins the prisomer's arrest
until the excitement had calmed down.*

i A former member of the Sarsfleld Grepadier Cuard had been dis- |
, - honorably discharged, elthough he claimed Le had never received
U any notification. Ceptein Sheehan, June 9, 1881, transmitted :
l kFrivate Bugene Jhea's letter oxplaining the circumstances of x
| bis sbsence from the city to adjutant General 5. W. Backus, |
‘ with the recommendation a pardon be granted, but that -he be |
only re-instated in the company with the members consent. The ’
case was referred to Governor Ferkins, who granted the pardon N

{ | =000~ ‘ ‘ ' il
*Ad jutant Genersl Report 1883-1884, page 8. |

1 *SFor further detalls concerning the Raten Affelr, refer to Hlstory
b of Battery A, First Artillery Regiment, Fourth Brigade.
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BATTERY G (Continued)

Activities: (Continued)

but stipulating thet Frivete GShea must have the company's
approval before reinstatement.

The battery held weekly drills and particuler attention was
given to target practice, Battallion drills were also partici-
pated in frequently. The drills were generally well attended
and of great benefit not only in the way of meneuvers, but in
disclplining the men and stimulating healthy conpatition between
the varlous companies. ,

The inspection of Battery C was held Hovember 22, 1880, which
report indicated the corps heving a cash balance on hand of
$285.41. This finencial condition was unusual for a new or

~ reorganized company, especially when the change of uniform
necessitated considerable expense. Mkajor C. E. Hubbard, In-
specting officer,remarked *that the corps was in very good
condit%on with arms well cared for and Stete property in good
repair?.

The legislature realizing the necessity of annusl encampments
made partlsl provision for the payment of expenses incidentel
to the different commands attending. The First Artillery Regl-
ment attended the encampment at Alameda, for eight days in
18680 end Captain Sheehan's remarks are gquoted to indicate the
success of the outlinge. The Camp of Instruction at Alameds
was of speclal adventage to the compeny. Greater steadiness
belng observed alter the encampment, and the men recelved an
insight in the dutles of a soldler which was impossible to
obtaln except in such Camps of Instruction or in actual service.
The result of the week's camp life showed such lmprovement in
military routine that the practicability and advisabllity of
these assemblaeges proved a necessity, and provision was made
for annual -Camps of Instruction thersafter. During 1l8€1
Battery C attended the encempment held at Ismert's CGrove,
Nevada County, and the year following at San Rafeel. One of
the activitlies that Bettery C participated in during the Camp
of Instruction &t Ismert's Grove, wes the rifle practice
shooting et the required distance of 200 yards in conjunctiom
with the competition for the Veteran Trophy.*

The encampment of July 15, 16885, was outstanding for the fact

it wes the first ever held of tie entire Natlionel Guard of the
Stete., Battery C and the other batteries of the First artillery
Regiment, together with the First Provisional reglment of six
unessigned companies were under the direct command of Brigadier-
General John T. Cerey.  The site chosen wes Santa Cruz, and the

*Deily Alta Cslifornia, August 1, 1881, pege 1, column 5.
-5-




BATTERY G (Contimued]

Activities: (Continued)

camp was located along the base of a high range of wooded
hills with & large field for battalion and brigade evolutlonms.
It was easily reached from all parts of the State by rail and
steamer and was only & mile to the beach where see bathing

was indulged in. The mildness of the climaete permitted drills
and exercises to be held any hour of the deay without dis-
comfort or danger to the health of the troops. Battery G
arrived during the night of the fifteenth end spent the next
day getting settled in camp. It being Sunday divine service
was celebrated. On Monday the regular routine of drills,
paredes, and other duties of camp commenced, and was carried
on with little deviation to the end of the encampment.

f

Battery G in militery eppeerance and soldierly bearing was
equal to any end showed careful training. The battery derived
lesting benefits from this outing, for the encampments of so
many commands offers more edvanteges than a camp of a single
reglmental unit--duty 1s more attractive, a friemndly rivalry
is stimuleted among the different organizations eand the troops
beccme accustomed to operating together. Camp duty 1s an
essential factor of good military instruction for relliable
soldiers cannot be made by armory instruction and street
parades.* .One particularly interesting feature of the en-
campment attended by the First Artillery Regiment in 1890,

and for which the men received heavy criticliam by the In-
aiaotion officers was their ummilitery conduct in having their
wives and families in camp for the eight deys, living and
quartering in the camp at the expense of the State.

"  The yeer following the men who were accompanied by their wives
and children, presumebly made other srran ements for thelr
vacation as the reports fsil to mention any controversy over
this issue. The Camp of Instruction in 1801 was to be held
at Santa Cruz, on the grounds faclng the city rformerly occupied
by the Eight: Battellion and was named Camp Murray for the
Assistant Adjutant Ceneral. The camp was laid out in the
following manner: Regimental Headquarters faced an avenue
elghty feet wide and & dance pavilion 36" x 50'.: The fleld
officers street was forty feet wide, slso that of the line
officers and company streets were rlrty feet with ten tents

' to & street in the latter. A few days previous to the day on
which the regiment was to leave, the Sacramento Record-Union
ren an editoricl eppecl to the.employers o e Cuardsman

=000=

*Ad jutant General Report 1885-1686, page 127.




o BATTERY ¢ (Continued) B
sctivities: (Contlnued) |
which reads as follows:

*The Camp of Instruction is to be held et the
seaside, where the ozone of the ocean breeze
may most invigorate the men; it will rest
them, though the duties are exacting; it will
treshen them, though its disciplinary demands
are heavy. By all means let the men go, and
give them God speed irn the going."

The eppesl was met whole hcartadly and the regiment to which
Battery C was attaohnd left with full ranks for the camp. . The
trip was mede by *rain and after nine hours enroute the company
reached Santa Cruz early in the morning. ZLverything had been
done for the mens' comfort, sleeping accommodations lad been
provided on the train and braakrast was served as soon as they
arrived at their destination. The train went by Benlcia to the
Oakland Mole, through Eilus and Sen Jose then to Santa Cruz.
Brigadierbceneral We T. Sheehan, visited the camp on VWednesday
following the beginning of the outing. Captain John J. 0'Connell,
First United States Infantry, haed been detailed by the Secretary
of War to report to the CQmmandorwin-Chler for duty as inspect-
ing and instructing officer.

(4

Captain 0'Comnell reported on the excellent behavior of the
regiasent and the promptness with which orders were obeyed.
Officers and men performed thelr duty with aleority and to the
best of thelir ability. Battery G and the other units were
credited with a vast improvement over the former year in guard

- duty, skirmish, drill, and military courtesy. Sentinels per-
rorned their tesk cheorfully and with a conmendable degree of
eaccuracy. There was good work done in battalion and skirmish
drills subject, however, toc the following exceptions. Distances
were at feult, lines broken, in some instences the men were
huddled together in a heep or scattered with large intervening
geaps, generally the step was too short and little or no attempt
was made et correcting errors by the file closers.*

The last encampment that Battery C particlpated in before belng
transferred to the Second Infantry was at Camp Columbus, Santa

' ' Cruz, August 6, 1892, so named for the Fourth Centennlai of
the &1acovery of our country. Ma Jor General W. H. Dimond, was
the commander of the Division of the Naetional Cuard while the .
First Artillery Regiment to which Battery G was attached was
commanded by Brigedler-Cenerzl T. W. Sheehan. The outstanding
feeture of this outing wes that it was to be conducted for purely

=000~
*San Frencisco Call, August 10, 1891, page 3, column 1.




Activities: (Continued)

military instruction and not for display. The main purpose

was to enable the units attending to discover their possible
deficiencies and shortcomings end to correct the same, thereby
teking adventage of the short time availasble for these instructions.
The routine as leald down by the Special Orders were rigidly

carried out resulting in & marked and profitable rovement

at the end of the allotted time. Some of the more important

orders affecting Battery C were as follows:

l. To secure uniformity end a formaetion con-
forming to the new drill regulations, each Regi-
ment was equally divided Iinto two vettalions for
drill purposes. . i

(4

2. A color line was established each day in the
regimental camps with sentinels posted and all
persons in the military service crossing the
color line were regquested to salute the colors.

3. Persons nct connected with the National Cuard
were not permitted 1in camp after tatoo. 4ll
sxercises were to be Jdone in undress or campelign
uniforms which was & practical 1dea and edded
meterially to the men's comfort.

The camp was formally oiined August seventh by the rlrlnﬁ of the
; Natlonal Salute at revellle and with the firing of the first gun
‘ the flag was ralsed and the bends present played the Hatlonal eirs.
* Esch succeeding day one gun was fired daily at reveille and retreat.
: g The ralsing of the flag at reveille and lowering at retreat was
under the supervislon of the officer of the Guard at Division
Headquarters. Battery G profited substantially from the close
proximity of the First Infantry Reglment, United States Army
Regulars under the command of Colonel williem R. Shafter. They
- 86t a fine example and cooperated in every wey with the Natiomal
Guard forces. The sctivities of the unit while in cemp were
; participation in regimental dress parade, battalion formations
and skirmish drills. On the day camp c¢closed August thirteenth
- Governor Markbham, accompenied by Admirsl Irwin, United States
! Navy, reviewed the troops which consisted of the Nationsl Guard
Division, the First Infantry, United States irmy, the marines
end sallors of the crulser's "Charleston™ and "Boston" and three
companies of the Naval Battallon.

v

f Target practice as & compulsory measure was held annuslly, but

l - as the men were required to fire only five or ten shots it was
considered insufficient preactice by aidjJutant Ceneral George B.
Cosby. To offset this handicep the Genersl recommended that
armory practice be encoursged by commending officers. By using
the service rifles with reduced charges, regulated to the distance,

wle ;i




BATTERY G (Contlinued)

Activities: (Continued)

the soldier would become accustomed to the weight and trigger
pull of his rifle. The result from such practice, as a manner
of instruction, would be to enable the members participating
to be handy in the use of their arms and to hold thelir sight
steadily on the objeet while pulling the trigger. Colonel
Sheehan commanding the First Artillery Reglment to whiech
Battery G was attached recognized the wisdom of the Adjutent
Ge#peral's remarks, and the interest that he and his officers
took had fer reaching results among the members of the corps.
A good range was secured and targets bullt, and with the ensuilng
c practice of the officers and men became excellent shots.

‘ Fart of the §3,500 appropriation allowed by the Legislature in

’ |

g 15687 and 1688 was used to purchase State Decorations to be

3 awarded to those meking & certain percentage at the annual
target prectice.*

Thirty-eight members of Battery G took part in the target
practice held in September 18867, rating 42.62 per cent. Out

of this mumber two were sharpshooters belonging to the Pirste
¢lass having & percentage of ninety or over, and were each
awarded a medel with a gold bar attached. Lieutenant John Miller,
one of the gold bar winners was Inspector of Rifle Frectice for
the First Artillery. Fifteen took Second-class honors having
over 80 per cent and were entitled to the medals with silver
bars. fteen of the other members were in the Third-class
rating between 50 per cent end 80 per cent and received medals
with the bronze bar. Five were disquelified and the remaining
n:mbora made below BS per cent end were placed in the Fourth=-

: Class.

- In 1890 the system of holding target prectice asnnually was
' changed to semi-annually, and to induce the men to come out
‘ for the both days practice prizes were offered for the first
‘ day's work. A speclel medal was ewerded to the member of each
orgenization making the best score. More sttention had been
i glven to short renge firing eas the Nationsl Guard's chief
i acotivities would be in quelling ricts and preserving pesce.
| Officers were sdvised that while encoursging the suceessful
; shots not to discourage the less efficient, for & company
: composed of fair shots were of more velue in time of meed than
| & company with a few expert shots.

=000~

*For further detalls regerding Target Fractice regulations, refer
to History of Battery ., First artillery Regiment, Fourth Brigsde.




BATTERY G (Continued)
Activities: (Continued)

Battery G paraded on the days required by law namely February
twenty-second, Memorial Day, Independence Duay and the Fourth
of July and on the days set aside for target practices. Ome
of the outstanding parades in the company's early existence

- was on the occasion of the laying of the corner stone of the

o Carfield Monument in Sam Frencisco, August 24, 1883, Battery '
C as one of the Sacramento compenies went down for the cere-
monles end was under the commsnd of Colonel Sheehan. Leaving
Sacramento on the 6:10 A, M., train and connecting with the
ferry-boat they arrived In the oity by ten o'clock, as the
military took its place in line and marched to Golden Gate
Park, After the ceremonies Battery C with the other units

o were given & lunch, and tendered the use of the armory belong=-

ing to the Third Infantry for sleeping purposes.®- The battery
hed taken part in the ceremonies paying homage to Fresident
Garfield at the time of his death September 19, 188l1. Thelr
armory had been draped in mourning for thirty days and the
officers were required to wear the usualtbadge of mourning
Tfor a like period.

When Ma jor General George B. McClellan, the couragecus soldier
end distinguished eitizen passed away 1n 1885, his memory was
respected by & similar demonstration in honor of his military
achievements.** Vice-President Thomas A. Hendricks, untimely
death December 1885 was another occasion for the battery to
share with the other commands regrets, and as a token of
respect the armory was draped in mourning.

pattery G was on escort duty during President Benjamin 7.

. Harrison's, visit to Secramento in 1891.*** The battery also
bed a pronlnent part in the Turn-Bezirk parede and reception
when the organization visited Sacramento in June of that year.
The First artillery Regiment to which Battery G was attached,
under command of Colonel J.'W. Guthrie, the Hussars under
Captain Schumacher, the Secramentc Turn Vereln and various
other (Gérman socleileu, together with Mayor Comstock and City

| Trusties Conklin and Melaughlin were waiting when the trein
pulled in to greet the visiting society. The visitors mumbered
several hundred and presented & pleasing appearance in thelr

! . | | ~00o-

L fSaorumonto Bee, August 23,?1883, page 5, coclumn 2.

y *3,4jutant Genersl Report 1885-1886, page 83.

i S&%Tor further details of Ifesident Benjemin J. Harrison's visit to

Sacrsmento, refer to History of Battery A, First airtillery Hegle
ment, Fourth Brigede.
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Activities: (Continued)

regulation Turner uniforms and broad hata. Most of the Vereins
carried torchlights. A platoon of mount.ed police were rirst
in the' line of march followed by the First irtillery Regiment
band and campanies of the regiment who were present with well
filled ranks. After which ecame the carriages containing the
Hayor and Trusties, Fresident Lothammer of the Sacramento A
Turners, and officiels of the Bezlrk. Grand Marshall Ruhstaller,
and his aids followed by the Hussars'band and the Hussars were
next in line, and after them came the Turn-Vereins and drum
. corps. It was a spectacular sight as some of the marchers
i carried Japanese lanterns, other torches and roman cendles,
| while the Iine kept in step with the lively tunes played by
| the bands; and all the time the alr was allive with ‘shooting
J - stars of various colors and long serpentine rockets. After the
‘ visiting Turn-Bezirks reached the hall and were bangueted, the
nilltgry end bands went downstairs where a like spread awaited
them, . _

One of the last ectivities Battery C exercised a part in before

ﬁ- being trensferred to the Second Infentry was when the unit
acted as escort to the Crand Army Republic on Memorial Day

‘ 1892. The 24th inniversary of Memorial Day was appropriately

| observed in Sacramento., The flags were at half-mast throughe

out the e¢ity end the business houses closed their doors for

the day. It wes evident from the large crowd assembled that

every one was out to witness the ceremonies with the Grand

Army Veterans taking the most active part and belng sssisted

materially by the'military, eitizens and municipal suthorities.

The decorating of the soldiers plot was done by conmittees of

ladies from the various Relief Corps. The procession was led

by a platoon of police headed by Chief of FPolice Rodgers and

Captain Bradley. Next came the First Artillery band and then

. the First Artillery Regiment who turned cut with full ranks

é presenting their customary trim-appearance. The Crand Army

Veterans marching in their respective posts and to the musie

furnished by & drum and fife corps came after the cannons in

the line of march. Following the old soldiers were the Sons

of Veterens and then & long line of carrisges containing

notables of the day end prominent citizens. When the exercises

at the Crand Army Republic plot were completed, the military

marched back of their respective posts.™™

=00 0=

*Sacramento Record-Union, June 22, 1891, pege 3, column 3.
**Sacramento Union, May 31, 1892, page 3, column 1.
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BATTERY ¢ (Contimued)

Activities: (Continued)
In sccordance with the recommendation of the Board of Locatlon
and Organization the First Artillery Regiment was transferred
to the Second - Infantry Regiment, Fourth Brigede, July 1, 1883.

Battery G as part of this regiment was transferred to the Second
Infantry end designeted thereafter es Company G, Second Infantry,

Fourth Brigede.”

*4d jutent General Report 1893-1894, General Order No. 7, page 97.

-]l




